June 2022



# Instructions for use HPV-Risk assay

for use with the Mic qPCR cycler

Version 1



For in vitro diagnostic use

Self-screen B.V., Biothof 15-1, 1098 RX Amsterdam, The Netherlands



QHR13172



# Contents

Intended Use	3
Summary and Explanation	3
Principle of the procedure	4
Materials Provided	4
Materials required but not provided	4
Warnings and Precautions	5
Safety information	5
General precautions	5
Reagent storage and handling	6
Sample handling	6
Cervical specimens	6
Self-collected vaginal brush specimens	6
Genomic DNA samples	.7
Sample preparation	7
DNA extraction	7
Procedure: HPV-Risk assay on the Mic qPCR cycler	8
Interpretation of results	9
Troubleshooting1	.0
Limitations1	.1
Performance Characteristics *1	.2
Limit of Detection (LOD)1	12
Analytical specificity1	12
Interfering substances1	12
Clinical Performance1	12
Clinical performance on cervical specimens (scrapes)1	12
Reproducibility clinical specimens (scrapes)1	13
Clinical performance on self-collected (cervico-)vaginal specimens (scrapes)	13
Equivalence performance study MIC qPCK cycler1	.3
References	.4
Symbols	.5
Contact information1	.5

# Intended Use

The HPV-Risk assay is an in vitro real-time PCR-based assay for the qualitative detection of human papillomavirus (HPV) DNA of the following 15 (probably) high-risk HPV genotypes, i.e., 16, 18, 31, 33, 35, 39, 45, 51, 52, 56, 58, 59, 66, 67, and 68.

Samples that may be tested with HPV-Risk assay include DNA isolated from specimens that are collected in the following ways:

- Cervical specimens collected using a brush/broom-type collection device (collected by a physician)
- Vaginal specimens collected using a brush-broom or lavage device (self-collected)

Indications for use:

- As a primary test in screening of women for the risk of cervical (pre)cancer to determine the need for referral to colposcopy or other follow-up procedures
- As a follow-up test for women with Pap test results with atypical squamous cells of undetermined significance (ASC-US) or low-grade squamous intra-epithelial neoplasia (Isil) to determine the need for referral to colposcopy of other follow-up procedures

This product is intended to be used by professional users, such as technicians and laboratorians, who are trained in in vitro diagnostics procedures, molecular biological techniques, and the Mic qPCR cycler.

# Summary and Explanation

Human papillomaviruses (HPV) belong to the family of Papillomaviridae and are small double-stranded DNA viruses. The circular genome is approximately 7.9 kilo bases in size. More than 100 types of HPV have been identified, of which certain HPV types, known as high-risk HPV (hrHPV) like HPV 16 and 18, are associated with the induction of mucosal lesions that can progress to malignancy. Cervical cancer and its precursor lesions (cervical intraepithelial neoplasia, CIN) are the most well-known complications of a persistent infection with a high-risk type of HPV <sup>1-3</sup>.

The viral genome contains early (E) and late (L) genes, which encode proteins necessary for early and late stages of the HPV life cycle, respectively. The E6 and E7 gene products of hrHPV types have carcinogenic properties and are necessary for malignant transformation of the host cell <sup>4</sup>. Malignant progression is often associated with viral integration into the genome of the host cell <sup>5</sup>. Integration results in interruption of the viral genome in a region that may extend from the E1 to the L1 open reading frame <sup>6</sup>. This may have consequences for PCR-mediated amplification of viral DNA in these regions. As not only the initiation but also the maintenance of the transformed phenotype depends on continuous expression of the viral oncoproteins <sup>7,8</sup>, the viral E6/E7 region is invariably retained in integrated viral genomes in cervical cancers <sup>6</sup>. The HPV-Risk assay targets a conserved region within the E7 gene. The assay has been clinically validated according to the international guidelines for HPV detection assays <sup>9,10</sup>.

# Principle of the procedure

The HPV-Risk assay is a multiplex, real-time PCR-based assay directed against the E7 gene of 15 (probably) hrHPV types that uses fluorescent probes for the detection of one or more accumulating PCR products. During each PCR cycle the fluorescent signal increases in a logarithmic manner resulting in an amplification curve. As soon as the amplification curve of the target comes above its threshold, the sample is considered positive for that target. The multiplex format allows the simultaneous detection of four different fluorescent dyes per reaction, with each fluorescent dye representing different targets. The four different targets are: 1. HPV 16, 2. HPV 18, 3. the 13 other hrHPV types as a pool and 4. the human  $\beta$ -globin gene. The HPV-Risk assay separately detects HPV 16, HPV 18, and the pool of 13 other hrHPV genotypes. The human  $\beta$ -globin gene is used as the sample control determining both the quality of the sample DNA and the presence of potential inhibitory substances.

# **Materials Provided**

#### **HPV-Risk kit content**

Number of reactions		72	
HPV-Risk assay master mix (1 tube)	Transparent color	1080 µl	
HPV-Risk assay Positive control (1 tube)	Transparent color	100 µl	
HPV-Risk assay Negative control (1 tube)	Transparent color	100 µl	

# Materials required but not provided

When working with chemicals, always wear a suitable lab coat, disposable gloves, and protective goggles. For more information, consult the appropriate safety data sheets (SDSs), available from the product supplier.

Consumables and reagents for preparation for clinical specimens

- Standard DNA extraction kits, such as QIAamp<sup>®</sup> DSP virus spin kit (QIAGEN, cat.no. 61704), QIAsymphony<sup>®</sup> DSP Virus/Pathogen Midi Kit (QIAGEN, cat. no. 937055) and NucleoMag 96 Tissue kit (Macherey-Nagel, cat.no. 744300)
- Hologic PreservCyt<sup>®</sup> Solution (for self-collected samples storage)
- AL buffer (QIAGEN, cat.no. 19075) for pretreatment of cervical samples collected in SurePath and CellSolutions collection medium

Consumables and reagents for the Mic qPCR cycler

• Strip tubes and Caps, 0.1 ml (Bio Molecular Systems, cat.no. MIC-TUBES)

#### <u>Equipment</u>

• Adjustable pipets (1–10 µl; 10–100 µl) and filter tips

- Disposable gloves
- Benchtop centrifuge with a speed >10,000 rpm
- Vortex mixer

#### Equipment for real-time PCR

- Mic qPCR cycler (Bio Molecular Systems)
- QPCR software (Bio Molecular Systems)
- HPV-Risk assay run profile named 'HPV-Risk Mic v1.0.mictemplate'.

# Warnings and Precautions

For in vitro diagnostic use only.

#### Safety information

When working with chemicals, always wear a suitable lab coat, disposable gloves, and protective goggles. For more information, please consult the appropriate safety data sheets (SDSs). HPV-Risk assay positive and negative controls contain sodium azide as a preservative (0.01%). Sodium azide may react with lead and copper plumbing to form explosive metal azides. On disposal through the sink, flush drains with large amounts of cold water to prevent azide build-up.

#### General precautions

Use of PCR tests require good laboratory practices, including maintenance of equipment, that are dedicated to molecular biology and is compliant with applicable regulations and relevant standards. Always pay attention to the following:

- Wear protective disposable powder-free gloves, a laboratory coat, and eye protection when handling specimens.
- Prevent microbial and nuclease (DNase) contamination of the specimen and the kit. DNase may cause degradation of the DNA template.
- Sample preparation and PCR set up should be performed in a dedicated area separated from the area in which PCR amplification will be performed. To minimize the risk for PCR reaction contamination the use of a PCR-cabinet with UV-radiation is strongly recommended.
- The working area needs to be kept clean especially from PCR contaminants. Cleaning can be performed with 0.1 N HCl and/or UV-radiation, or by a user preferred and proven method.
- Avoid DNA or PCR product carryover contamination, which could result in a false-positive signal.
- Use extreme caution to prevent contamination of the mixes with the synthetic materials that are contained in the PCR reagents.
- Always use DNase-free disposable pipet tips with aerosol barriers.
- Reagents of HPV-Risk assay are optimally diluted. Do not dilute reagents further as this may result in a loss of performance.
- All reagents supplied in the HPV-Risk assay kit are intended to be used solely with the other reagents supplied in the same kit. Do not substitute any reagent from one kit with the same reagent from another HPV-Risk assay kit, even from the same batch, as this may affect performance.
- Refer to the Mic qPCR cycler user manual for additional warnings, precautions, and procedures.

- Alteration of incubation times and temperatures may result in erroneous or discordant data.
- Do not use components of the kit that have passed their expiration date, or that have been incorrectly stored.
- Minimize the exposure of components to light; reaction mixes may be altered due to exposure.
- Discard sample and assay waste according to your local safety procedures.

### Reagent storage and handling

HPV-Risk assay is shipped on dry ice. If any component of the HPV-Risk assay is not frozen upon arrival, the outer packaging has been opened during transit please contact the local distributor.

Upon receipt store immediately at -30 to -15°C in a constant-temperature freezer and protected from light. It is advised to store the kit in a laboratory that is free of PCR amplicons.

When stored under the specified storage conditions, HPV-Risk assay is stable until the expiration date stated on the box label. Once opened, reagents can be stored in their original packaging at -30 to -15°C. Repeated thawing and freezing should be avoided. Do not exceed a maximum of 5 freeze-thaw cycles. Before use, thaw the reagents completely. Mix by gently vortexing and centrifuge the tubes before opening.

# Sample handling

#### Cervical specimens

The HPV-Risk assay is for use with genomic DNA samples extracted from cervical specimens (scrapes). Validated collection media for cervical specimens (scrapes) are PreservCyt, CellSolutions<sup>®</sup>, Pathtezt<sup>®</sup>, and SurePath<sup>®</sup> collection medium. Optimal storage temperature of the clinical samples is 2–8°C upon arrival at the lab.

Cervical samples collected in PreservCyt can be stored up to 210 days after sample collection at 18-25°C, up to two and half years at 2-8°C, and up to 2 years at  $\leq$ -20°C. Cervical samples collected in SurePath can be stored up to 10 weeks after sample collection at 2-30°C, up to two and half years at 2-8°C, and up to 210 days at  $\leq$ -20°C.

#### Self-collected vaginal brush specimens

The HPV-Risk assay is for use with genomic DNA samples extracted from self-collected vaginal brush and self-collected cervico-vaginal lavage specimens. Self-collected vaginal brush specimens can be collected and shipped dry or in saline (0.9% w/v NaCl) and, upon arrival in the laboratory, stored in PreservCyt. Self-collected cervico-vaginal lavage specimens are collected and shipped in saline (0.9% w/v NaCl) and, upon arrival in the laboratory, stored in PreservCyt. Self-collected cervico-vaginal lavage specimens are collected and shipped in saline (0.9% w/v NaCl) and, upon arrival in the laboratory, stored in PreservCyt. Self-samples in PreservCyt can be stored up to 210 days after sample collection at 18-25°C, up to two and half years at 2-8°C, and up to 2 years at ≤-20°C.

#### Genomic DNA samples

Once genomic DNA is extracted, it can be stored at  $2-8^{\circ}$ C for short-term storage ( $\leq 2$  days) or at -30 to  $-15^{\circ}$ C for up to 12 months.

# Sample preparation

#### **DNA** extraction

Standard DNA extraction kits (e.g., column- and magnetic bead-based kits, such as QIAamp<sup>®</sup> DSP virus spin kit, QIAsymphony<sup>®</sup> DSP Virus/Pathogen Kit, and NucleoMag 96 Tissue kit (Macherey-Nagel)) are compatible with this assay.

#### Clinical specimens in PreservCyt or PathTezt collection medium

For cervical specimens (scrapes) suspended in PreservCyt or PathTezt collection medium, the fraction of DNA to be used as input in the PCR represents 0.125% of the 20 ml PreservCyt or PathTezt cervical scrape sample. This corresponds with 25 µL of the original sample. Since at maximum only 5 µl of extracted DNA can be used as input in the PCR, DNA extraction procedures should be executed such that 5 µl DNA extract corresponds with 25 µl cervical specimen (scrape) sample to ensure that the correct fraction of the cervical sample is used in the PCR. Equivalent media should be processed similarly. **IMPORTANT:** PreservCyt medium can interfere with the DNA extraction process. To overcome this the PreservCyt sample can be 1) diluted (1:1) with lysis buffer that is compatible with the DNA extraction kit prior to starting DNA extraction, or 2) pellet the sample by centrifugation and remove the PreservCyt by pipetting. The pellet is resuspended in appropriate volume of PBS or lysis buffer that is compatible with the DNA extraction kit prior to starting DNA extraction. Equivalent media should be processed similarly.

#### Clinical specimens in SurePath or CellSolutions collection medium

For cervical specimens (scrapes) suspended in SurePath or CellSolutions collection medium, the fraction of DNA to be used as input in the PCR represents 0.25% of the 10 ml SurePath or CellSolutions cervical scrape sample. This corresponds with 25  $\mu$ L of the original sample. Since at maximum only 5  $\mu$ l of extracted DNA can be used as input in the PCR, sample volume and DNA elution volume should be selected such that 5  $\mu$ l DNA extract corresponds with 25  $\mu$ l cervical specimen (scrape) sample to ensure that the correct fraction of the cervical sample is used in the PCR.

**IMPORTANT**: Clinical specimens collected in SurePath and CellSolutions medium must be pretreated prior to use to overcome formaldehyde-induced crosslinking using the described below.

#### Pretreatment clinical specimens collected in SurePath and CellSolutions medium:

- 1. Dilute the cervical specimens in SurePath or CellSolutions 1:1 with AL buffer (QIAGEN) and mix thoroughly.
- 2. Incubate at 90°C for 20 minutes followed by equilibration to room temperature before proceeding with DNA extraction.

Equivalent media containing formaldehyde should be processed similarly.

#### Self-collected specimens

For self-collected vaginal brush specimens suspended in Hologic PreservCyt Solution, DNA extraction procedures should be executed, such that 5  $\mu$ l DNA extract used as input in the PCR represents 0.5% of the vaginal sample. For example, the vaginal self-sample will be suspended in 3 ml PreservCyt Solution then 5  $\mu$ l input DNA corresponds with 15  $\mu$ l of the self-sample suspension.

**IMPORTANT:** PreservCyt medium can interfere with the DNA extraction process. To overcome this the PreservCyt sample can be 1) diluted (1:1) with lysis buffer that is compatible with the DNA extraction kit prior to starting DNA extraction, or 2) pellet the sample by centrifugation and remove the PreservCyt by pipetting. The pellet is resuspended in appropriate volume of PBS or lysis buffer that is compatible with the DNA extraction kit prior to starting DNA extraction.

For self-collected cervico-vaginal lavage specimens, the fraction of DNA to be used as input in the PCR represents 0.5% of the lavage self-sample. Thus, in the case of a total lavage volume of 3 ml, DNA extraction procedures should be executed such that 5  $\mu$ l input DNA corresponds with 15  $\mu$ l of the original lavage self-sample.

# Procedure: HPV-Risk assay on the Mic qPCR cycler

#### HPV-Risk assay Reaction Setup for Mic qPCR cycler

Before you start:

- To minimize the risk for PCR contamination, it is strongly recommended that a PCR-cabinet with UVirradiation capability is used.
- Dispensing of the HPV-Risk assay master mix must be performed in an area separate from the area where the DNA extraction is performed.
- Clean the bench area, pipets, and tube rack prior to use with a DNA-degrading solution to prevent template or nuclease contamination

In a designated DNA- and amplicon-free area:

- Thaw the HPV-Risk assay master mix, Positive Control and Negative Control completely, and protect the HPV-Risk assay master mix from light whenever possible NOTE: Do not exceed 30 minutes for the thawing step, to avoid any material degradation.
- 2. Briefly vortex and spin down prior to pipetting.
- Dispense 15 μl of ready-to-use HPV-Risk assay master mix into the appropriate tubes of the tube-strips (at maximum 48 tubes per run). Reaction setup can be done at room temperature. *NOTE:* Each tube is preloaded with silicone oil to prevent evaporation and condensation. Make sure you pipet tip does not touch the silicone oil.
- 4. Return the vial with remaining HPV-Risk assay master mix to the freezer to avoid any material degradation.
- 5. Transfer tube strips to designated amplicon-free area.

In a designated amplicon-free area:

6. Add 5  $\mu$ l of water for the Negative Control (NC) reaction to tube position 2.

- 7. Add 5  $\mu$ l of HPV-Risk assay Positive Control (PC) to tube position 1.
- 8. Add 5  $\mu$ l of sample DNA to the appropriate tubes containing the HPV-Risk assay master mix.
- Once a set of 4 tubes has been filled, use the Mic capping tool to close the tubes.
  NOTE: The PCR tubes can be stored up to 30 minutes between pipetting samples into the PCR tubes and start of the experiment in the machine at 2-8°C in the dark.
- 10. Return the HPV-Risk assay Positive and Negative Controls to the freezer to avoid any material degradation.
- 11. Transfer tube strips to designated PCR amplification area.

In a designated PCR amplification area:

- 12. Place tube strips into 48-well rotor according to the assigned positions, unused positions should be filled with dummy tube strips holding 20 μL of water with caps as counterweight.
- 13. Attach locking ring.

#### Mic qPCR machine set up

- 14. Start the micPCR Software.
- 15. Click New, Run from Template
- 16. Select template: HPV-Risk assay v.1.0 and click Ok.
- 17. Select Samples and enter the sample identification number(s) into this list. The Positive control is always on position 1 and the Negative control on position 2. Appoint in the 'Type' section the Positive control as Positive control and the Negative control as NTC.
- 18. Click on the Mic instrument icon (right top).
- 19. Click Start Run.
- 20. Enter the run (experiment) name and click *Save*.
- 21. Click Start. The HPV-Risk assay run should start.

#### Acquiring Cq values

- 21. After the run is successfully completed click OK.
- 22. Click on save.
- 23. Go in the left pane to Identifier and click on HPV-risk MIC v.1.0.
- 24. The right pane 'Results' will show you the test result of each sample.
- 25. To make a report go to the left pane and click on '*Reports +*'. A preview of the report will be displayed. Checkbox in the 'Configuration section' the items 'Run properties' and 'Identifier: HPV-risk MIC v.1.0'.
- 26. Click on the icon 'Export' (top of right pane) and select export format 'PDF' and click OK.

## Interpretation of results

The analysis is entirely automated, results are displayed in the PDF.

The Mic qPCR software will first analyze the run controls:

- HPV-Risk positive control

#### - HPV-Risk negative control

# NOTE: if one or both controls are invalid the software will automatically invalidate the samples as 'Sample invalid'.

If all controls in the run are valid, then the software will analyze the unknown samples.

- The Cq values for HPV16, HPV18 and Other HPV will be interpreted and when for one (or more) HPV target(s) the Cq is below its cut-off the sample will be scored "HPV positive".
- If all HPV targets have Cq that are above their cut-off the sample and the Cq value of the housekeeping gene β-globin is ≤30, the sample will be scored "HPV negative".
- If all HPV targets and the housekeeping gene β-globin have Cq values that are above their cutoff, the sample will be scored 'Sample invalid'.

Analysis settings		
Target	Channel	Cq cut-off for positivity
β-globin	Orange	≤30
HPV16	Green	<36
HPV18	Red	<36
HPV Other	Yellow	<33.5

#### Analysis settings

# Troubleshooting

This troubleshooting guide may be helpful in solving any problems that may arise. If the problem persists or in case of questions or other information contact your local distributor or Self-screen at <u>info@self-screen.nl</u>.

Comments and suggestions		
Sample is scored invalid: the amplification of $\beta$ -globin is too low or absent		
a)	Pipetting error or omitted reagents	Check pipetting scheme and the reaction setup. Repeat the PCR run.
b)	Check the DNA eluate	Repeat DNA extraction.
c)	Strip tube inversion	Check the pipetting scheme and the reaction setup.
d)	Inhibitory effects	Always check there are no remains of buffer or beads in the DNA eluate. Repeat DNA extraction.
Positive C	Control is scored invalid: the amplification is too low or abs	ent for one or more of the targets
a)	Pipetting error or omitted reagents	Check pipetting scheme and the reaction setup. Repeat the PCR run.
b)	Partial degradation	Store kit contents at –30 to –15°C. Avoid repeated freezing and thawing to a maximum of five cycles.
c)	PCR reagents partially degraded	Store kit contents at -30 to -15°C and keep the reaction mixes protected from light. Avoid repeated freezing and thawing to a maximum of five cycles.
d)	Strip tube inversion	Check the pipetting scheme and the reaction setup.
e)	Expiry date	Check the expiry date of the used kit.

Comments and suggestions		
f)	Time-delay between pipetting samples and start of the run	PCR reactions mixes can be stored at 2–8°C for 30 minutes in the dark between dispensing samples into the PCR reactions and starting the run in the machine.
Negative	e Control is invalid	
a)	Pipetting error	Check pipetting scheme and the reaction setup. Repeat the PCR run.
b)	Cross-contamination	Replace all critical reagents. Always handle samples, kit components, and consumables in the desginated areas and in accordance with commonly accepted practices to prevent carryover contamination.
c)	Reagent contamination	Replace all critical reagents. Always handle samples, kit components, and consumables in the designated areas and in accordance with commonly accepted practices to prevent carryover contamination.
d)	Strip tube inversion	Check the pipetting scheme and the reaction setup.
e)	Time-delay between pipetting samples and start of the run	PCR reactions mixes can be stored at 2–8°C for 30 minutes in the dark between dispensing samples into the PCR reactions and starting the run in the machine.
f)	Probe degradation	Keep reaction mixes protected from light.

# Limitations

For the indicated intended use the test should be performed on cervical scrape specimens or self-collected (cervico-)vaginal specimens. However, the HPV-Risk assay has also been evaluated for use with DNA extracted from formalin-fixed paraffin-embedded (FFPE) biopsy specimens.

Use of PCR tests requires good laboratory practices, including maintenance of equipment, that are dedicated to molecular biology and is compliant with applicable regulations and relevant standards.

The HPV-Risk assay is to be used by laboratory professionals trained in the use of the Mic qPCR cycler.

Any diagnostic results that are generated must be interpreted in conjunction with other clinical or laboratory findings.

Strict compliance with the Instructions for Use (handbook) is required for optimal HPV-Risk assay results.

Attention should be paid to expiration dates printed on the box and labels of all components. Do not use expired components.

All reagents supplied in the HPV-Risk assay are intended to be used solely with the other reagents supplied in the same kit. This may otherwise affect performance.

Any off-label use of this product and/or modification of the components will void Self-screen B.V.'s liability.

It is the user's responsibility to validate system performance for any procedures used in their laboratory that are not covered by the performance studies.

# Performance Characteristics \*

# Limit of Detection (LOD)\*\*

The limit of detection (LOD) was determined using gBlocks (i.e. double-stranded genomic DNA blocks) containing part of the E7 gene of an HPV genotype. Serial 3-fold gBlock dilutions series of the 15 targeted HPV types (i.e. 16, 18, 31, 33, 35, 39, 45, 51, 52, 56, 58, 59, 66, 67, and 68) were prepared in a background of 50 ng human DNA, and tested in 8-fold. For  $\beta$ -globin, the LoD was assessed on a 3-fold serial dilution series in water of a gBlock containing part of the  $\beta$ -globin gene which was tested in 8-fold.

	, ,, ,, ,,
Target	LOD (copies per PCR)
HPV 16	206
HPV 18	69
HPV 39, 45	617
HPV 31, 33, 35, 51, 56, 59, 66, 67	1852
HPV 52, 58, 68	5556
β-globin	617

Table 4. Limit of detection (LOD) of the HPV-Risk assay of 15 HPV types and  $\beta$ -globin gene

#### Analytical specificity

Analytical specificity was determined against plasmid DNAs of non-targeted HPV genomes (i.e., HPV 6, 11, 26, 40, 42, 43, 53, 61, and 70) at a concentration of at least 46,000 copies/test and against the 3 most potentially pathogenic vaginal microorganisms Chlamydia trachomatis, Neisseria gonorrhoeae, and Candida albicans at a concentration of at least 10,000 copies/test. The test did not show any cross-reactivity with the non-targeted HPV types 6, 11, 26, 40, 42, 43, 53, and 61, or the micro-organisms. Only for HPV 70, a positive signal was observed in the 'HPV Other' channel (i.e., the channel that detects the pool of 13 non-16/18 HPV types), which after further diluting could be detected at >17,000 copies/test. HPV 70 is considered probably carcinogenic on the basis of epidemiological, phylogenetic, and functional studies <sup>11-13</sup>.

#### Interfering substances

Traces of EDTA (0.5M), HCl (1N), Silica beads (1  $\mu$ l), Blood (1  $\mu$ l), Ureum (40 g/100 ml), and lysis buffer inhibited the performance of the test. ETOH 96% (1  $\mu$ l) and DMSO 4 % (v/v) had no inhibitory effect on the performance of the test. Inhibition is monitored by the sample control ( $\beta$ -globin target).

# **Clinical Performance**

#### Clinical performance on cervical specimens (scrapes)

The clinical sensitivity and specificity of the test for cervical intraepithelial neoplasia grade 2 or higher (CIN2+) in cervical specimens (scrapes) were validated by a non-inferiority analysis relative to high-risk HPV GP5+/6+ PCR following international guidelines for HPV test requirements for cervical cancer screening <sup>9</sup>.

<sup>\*</sup> Performance characteristics are indicated for HPV-Risk assay test version ABI7500 unless indicated otherwise. Equivalence analysis demonstrated similar performance for HPV-Risk assay for the Mic qPCR cycler.

<sup>\*\*</sup> LOD performance characteristics are indicated for QIAscreen HPV PCR Test performed on the Rotor-Gene Q MDx 5-plex HRM. Equivalence analysis demonstrated similar performance for HPV-Risk assay for the Mic qPCR cycler.

The clinical sensitivity for CIN 2+ was 96.8% (61/63) and the clinical specificity for CIN2+ was 95.1% (783/823). The clinical sensitivity and specificity were non-inferior to that of the reference assay GP5+/6+ PCR <sup>10</sup>, indicating a very good clinical performance.

The clinical performances of the HPV-Risk assay have also successfully been validated in the VALGENT frameworks. In the VALGENT 3 study the relative clinical sensitivity and specificity values for CIN3+ against the reference assay hybrid capture 2 (HC2, QIAGEN) on cervical scrapes collected in PreservCyt collection medium were of 1.00 (95%CI: 0.95 to 1.05) and 1.02 (95%CI: 1.01-1.04), respectively <sup>14</sup>. In the VALGENT 4 study the relative clinical sensitivity and specificity values for CIN3+ against the reference assay GP5+/6+-PCR on cervical scrapes collected in SurePath collection medium were of 1.01 (95%CI: 0.97 to 1.06) and 1.04 (95%CI: 1.02-1.06), respectively <sup>15</sup>. Performance of the HPV-Risk compared to the reference assays was non-inferior with all P-values  $\leq 0.006$ .

For women with ASC-US or lsil, the clinical sensitivity and specificity values for CIN2+ were 97.4% (37/38; 95%CI 83.5–99.6) and 59.8% (52/87; 95%CI: 49.2–69.5), respectively <sup>14</sup>.

#### Reproducibility clinical specimens (scrapes)

The intra-laboratory reproducibility and inter-laboratory agreement of the test were validated according to the international guidelines for HPV test requirements for cervical cancer screening <sup>9</sup>. The intra-laboratory reproducibility on cervical specimens (scrapes) over time was 99.5% (544/547) with a kappa value of 0.99 and the inter-laboratory agreement was 99.2% (527/531) with a kappa value of 0.98, indicating very good agreement <sup>10</sup>.

#### Clinical performance on self-collected (cervico-)vaginal specimens (scrapes)

The performance of the test in self-collected (cervico-)vaginal specimens has been validated for two different sampling methods: 1) self-collected lavage specimens, and 2) self-collected brush specimens. For self-collected lavage specimens, the agreement with the reference assay GP5+/6+ PCR was 96.7% (59/61) with a CIN2+ sensitivity of 91.4% (21/23) <sup>10</sup>. For self-collected brush specimens, the agreement with GP5+/6+ PCR was 92.9% (104/112) with a CIN2+ sensitivity of 93.9% (31/34) <sup>10</sup>.

# Equivalence performance study Mic qPCR cycler

The performance of the HPV-Risk assay on the Mic qPCR cycler was compared to the performance of the assay performed on the Rotor-Gene Q MDx 5-plex HRM (RGQ; available as QIAscreen HPV PCR Test). The limit of detection (LOD) was determined on serial dilution series of gBlock dilution series of each of the 15 HPV targets and the  $\beta$ -globin gene (range 750,000 to 0.25 copies per PCR) in duplicate. The LOD on the Mic qPCR cycler for the HPV and  $\beta$ -globin targets was highly comparable to that of the RGQ being equal or within one dilution step (approximately 3 fold) higher/lower from the reference. The performance on clinical samples was determined on DNA extracts of 149 cervical scrapes. The success rate of the HPV-Risk assay on the Mic qPCR cycler and on the RGQ were both 100% (149/149). The overall agreement in HPV-Risk assay result between the cyclers was 97.3% (145/149; 95%CI: 93.1-99.0; kappa value 0.94). Genotype agreement for sample positive with both assays was 100% (92/92).

# References

- 1. Walboomers, J.M., et al. (1999) Human papillomavirus is a necessary cause of invasive cervical cancer worldwide. J. Pathol. 189 (1), 12.
- Munoz, N., et al. (2003) Epidemiologic classification of human papillomavirus types associated with cervical cancer. N. Engl. J. Med. 348, 518.
- 3. Bosch, F.X., Lorincz, A., Munoz, N., Meijer, C.J., Shah, K.V. (2002) The casual relationship between human papillomavirus and cervical cancer. J. Clin. Pathol. 55, 244.
- 4. Snijders, P.J., Steenbergen, R.D., Heideman, D.A., Meijer, C.J. (2006) HPV-mediated cervical carcinogenesis: concepts and clinical implications. J. Pathol. 208(2), 152.
- 5. Vinokurova, S., et al. (2008) Type-dependent integration frequency of human papillomavirus genomes in cervical lesions. Cancer Res. 68(1), 307.
- Kraus, I., Driesch, C., Vinokurova, S., Hovig, E., Schneider, A., von Knebel, D.M., Durst, M. (2008) The majority of viral-cellular fusion transcripts in cervical carcinomas cotranscribe cellular sequences of known or predicted genes. Cancer Res. 68(7), 2514.
- 7. Horner, S.M., DeFilippis, R.A., Manuelidis, L., DiMaio, D. (2004) Repression of the human papillomavirus E6 gene initiates p53-dependent, telomerase-independent senescence and apoptosis in HeLa cervical carcinoma cells. J. Virol. 78, 4063.
- 8. Butz, K., Ristriani, T., Hengstermann, A., Denk, C., Scheffner, M., Hoppe-Seyler, F. (2003) siRNA targeting of the viral E6 oncogene efficiently kills human papillomavirus-positive cancer cells. Oncogene 22(38), 5938.
- 9. Meijer, C.J., et al. (2009) Guidelines for human papillomavirus DNA test requirements for primary cervical cancer screening in women 30 years and older. Int. J. Cancer 124(3), 516.
- 10. Hesselink, A. et al. (2014) Clinical validation of the HPV-Risk assay: a novel, real-time PCR assay for the detection of highrisk human papillomavirus DNA by targeting the E7 region. J. Clin. Microbiol. 52, 890.
- 11. de Sanjose, S. et al. (2010) Human papillomavirus genotype attribution in invasive cervical cancer: a retrospective crosssectional worldwide study. Lancet Oncol. 11, 1048.
- 12. IARC Working Group on the Evaluation of Carcinogenic Risks to Humans. (2012) Biological agents. Volume 100 B. A review of human carcinogens. IARC Mongr. Eval. Carcinog. Risks Hum. 100(Pt B), 1.
- Hiller, T., Poppelreuther, S., Stubenrauch, F., Iftner, T. (2006) Comparative analysis of 19 genital human papillomavirus types with regard to p53 degradation, immortalization, phylogeny, and epidemiologic risk classification. Cancer Epidemiol. Biomarkers Prev. 15, 1262.
- 14. Polman, N. et al. (2017) Evaluation of the Clinical Performance of the HPV-Risk Assay Using the VALGENT-3 Panel. J. Clin Microbiol.; 55(12):3544-3551.
- 15. Heideman, D. et al. (2019) Clinical performance of the HPV-Risk assay on cervical samples in SurePath medium using the VALGENT-4 panel. J Clin Virol.;121:104201.

# Symbols

The following symbols may appear on the packaging and labeling:

Symbol	Symbol definition
$\Box$	Use by
IVD	In vitro diagnostic medical device
CE	CE-IVD marked symbol
∑	Contains reagents sufficient for <n> reactions</n>
REF	Catalog number
LOT	Lot number
MAT	Material number
COMP	Components
CONT	Contains
NUM	Number
Rn	R is for revision of the Instructions for Use (Handbook) and n is the revision number
GTIN	Global Trade Item Number
1	Temperature limitation
	Manufacturer
*	Protect from light
Ti	Consult instructions for use
Â	Caution

# **Contact information**

For technical assistance and more information, please contact Self-screen or our local distributors.

Manufacturer:	Self-screen B.V., Biothof 15-1, 1098RX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands. info@self-screen.nl
Distributor:	Fujirebio Europe N.V. , Technologiepark 6, 9052 Gent, Belgium.

Tel. +32 9 329 13 29; customer.support@fujirebio-europe.com